ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
JO NT COMW TTEE ON LEGQ SLATI VE BUDGET AND AUDI T
May 7, 2001
9:10 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or CGene Therriault, Chair
Senat or Randy Phillips

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senator Gary W/ ken, alternate

Representative Hugh Fate, Vice Chair
Representative John Harris
Representati ve Ken Lancaster

HOUSE MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Jerry Ward
Senat or Dave Donl ey

Represent ative El don Ml der

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e

Representative WlliamWIIlians, alternate
Representative John Davies, alternate

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

APPROVAL OF M NUTES
AUDI T REPORTS
OTHER COW TTEE BUSI NESS

W TNESS REG STER

PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor

D vision of Legislative Audit

333 W I oughby Avenue

PO Box 113300

Juneau, Al aska 99811-3300

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Spoke on behalf of the D vision of
Legi sl ative Audit.

DAVI D TEAL, Legislative Fiscal Analyst
Legi sl ative Finance Division

Al aska State Legislature

PO Box 113200

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -1- May 7, 2001



Juneau, Al aska 99811
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke on behalf of the Legislative Finance
Di vi si on.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-05, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR THERRIAULT called the Joint Commttee on Legislative
Budget and Audit neeting to order at 9:10 a.m Present at the
call to order were Senators Phillips, WIlken, and Therriault,
and Representatives Harris, Lancaster, and Fate. Senat or
Hof fman arrived after the call to order

APPROVAL COF M NUTES

CHAI R THERRI AULT indicated the first order of business would be
the approval of mnutes from the Legislative Budget and Audit
neeting held on March 29, 2001.

Number 0119

VICE CHAIR FATE nmade a notion to approve the mnutes from the
March 29, 2001, neeting. There being no objection, the mnutes
wer e approved.

AUDI T REPORTS

CHAI R THERRI AULT stated that the primary reason for this neeting
was to consider four audit requests before the interim The
first audit request was from Senator Drue Pearce, dated April 5.
He asked Pat Davidson [Division of Legislative Audit] if she
knows exactly what Senator Pearce is |ooking for.

PAT DAVIDSON, Legislative Auditor, Division of Legislative
Audit, replied that "we" have worked with Senator Pearce on this
audit request, and therefore have an understanding of the

i ntent. She remarked that Senator Cowdery has voiced sone
questions and concerns with regard to the contract. However
she believes that they will be addressed in this audit request.

CHAIR THERRI AULT asked if this separate audit request would be
cover ed.

PAT DAVIDSON remarked that Senator Cowdery had concerns that
went beyond this audit request.

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 2- May 7, 2001



Number 0183

VICE CHAIR FATE nade a notion to approve the first audit

request, for the Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities - Ted Stevens Airport Term nal Redevel opnent Project,
Sel ected |ssues. There being no objection, the audit request

was approved.

CHAI R THERRI AULT announced that the second audit request would
be Senator Cowdery's request regarding the airport. He asked
Ms. Davi dson what Senator Cowdery is specifically | ooking for.

V5. DAVIDSON stated that Senator Cowdery's interest lies in the
i npact of the design specifications' failing to neet the seismc
standards, including what happens in relation to costs, |ost
revenues, inpacts of the tineline, and the funding source to
conpensate for that failed design.

VICE CHAIR FATE nmade a notion to approve the second audit
request, regarding the Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities - Ted Stevens Airport Term nal Redevel opnent Project
Design Specifications and Specific |ssues. There being no
obj ection, the audit request was approved.

CHAIR THERRI AULT announced that the third audit request,
relating to the governor's use of an aircraft and its expenses,
was from Senator Pearce and Senator Taylor. He noted that
Senator Tayl or has brought this issue forward a nunber of tines.

VICE CHAIR FATE nade a notion to approve the third audit
request, regarding the Departnent of Public Safety - King Ar
Aircraft usage FYs 00 and Ol. There being no objection, the
audit request was approved.

Nunmber 0458

CHAI R THERRI AULT announced that the fourth audit request was
submtted by Senator Green regarding the Departnent of Fish and
Game, Division of WIldlife Conservation Public Information and
Trai ni ng Education Program He noted that he has not spoken to
Senat or Green about this, and wondered how | ong Ms. Davi dson had
been working on it with her.

M5. DAVIDSON replied that this was discussed wth Senator
G een's staff on Friday.

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 3- May 7, 2001



CHAIR THERRI AULT asked if she wants just an accounting on the
programor is |ooking for sonmething in particular.

MS. DAVI DSON answered that she believes "they" are |ooking at
whet her the program run by the Departnment of Fish and Gane is in
total conpliance with its federal funding source, the Pittman-
Robert son funds.

Nunmber 0522
SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked when the | ast audit was done on them

V5. DAVIDSON replied that it has been a nunber of years since an
audit was done on hunter safety. She noted that generally
conpliance with federal prograns is |ooked at on an annua
basis. However, [audits] are often set up on a rotating basis.

Nunmber 0559

REPRESENTATI VE FATE nmade a notion to approve the fourth audit
request, regarding the Departnent of Fish and Gane, Division of
Wldlife Conservation Public Information and Training Education
Program There being no objection, the audit request was
approved.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked Ms. Davidson when prelimnaries would be
done on these audit requests.

V5. DAVIDSON replied that with audits fromthis neeting and the
| ast one, she expects that [the division] will be busy for the
next six nonths. However, she expects that these audits wll be
conpleted by the end of the interim

OTHER COWM TTEE BUSI NESS
Nunmber 0616

CHAI R THERRI AULT stated that M. Davidson has requested approval
for an expenditure for nodular workstations in the Division of
Legi slative Audit. They have (indisc.) equipnent, desks and
partitioned walls over the past years to refurnish their
wor kspace. He went on to say that they have been frugal wth
the noney that was budgeted for them this year. The division
would like to use sone of the surplus noney to purchase new
nodul ar workstations for the auditors. He noted that there was
a nmenorandum from Ms. Davidson in conmttee packets.

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -4- May 7, 2001



V5. DAVIDSON reiterated that the D vision of Legislative Audit
is frugal and watches "general services and supply" fairly
cl osely. For exanple, [the division] alnobst received furniture
fromthe Division of Retirement and Benefits, which was redoing
its space; however, due to space constraints in the division's
office, eight-by-eight standard cubicles are not possible.
Therefore, substandard-sized cubicles are necessary in order to
be within space constraints.

VI CE CHAI R FATE nmade a notion to approve the procurenent request
for up to $75, 000. There being no objection, the request was
approved.

Number 0737

CHAI R THERRI AULT stated that the final business was the [Al aska
School Qper ati ng Cost St udy] report regar di ng m ni num
expenditure for instruction, which was dictated when SB 36 was
passed. Statutes say that after the report is done, it needs to
be submtted to the Joint Conmttee on Legislative Budget and
Audit for review He noted that nenbers of the legislature
woul d be made aware that it is available for review

Nunmber 0778

SENATOR WLKEN explained that this report is the result of
education reform done three years ago. One of the good things
that resulted from SB 36 was finding out that four school
districts were spending 50 percent nore [of their operating
budget] outside of the classroom than inside the classroom
Therefore, a goal of 70 percent was set, which was adjusted | ast
year as the departnent attenpted to redefine [the percentage]
with and without the classroom A conprom se of 65 percent [of
the operating budget that should be spent on instruction]
resul ted. Those districts that don't neet the goals nust cone
before the board and explain why they didn't. He pointed out
that the effort is not to be punitive, but to be corrective in
an attenpt to place noney in the classroom and not in
adm ni strati on.

SENATOR W LKEN directed attention to page 9 of the report. He
noted that two school districts, the Annette Island and Chat ham
School Districts, had failed to neet the m nimum requirenent and
to explain why that 65 percent mninmm requirenent couldn't be
net. The top of page 10 specifies the penalty that is set forth
in statute. Those districts had to appeal to the Alaska State
Board of Education & Early Devel opnent, which granted those

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 5- May 7, 2001



districts a waiver. Senator Wl ken provided the committee a
| etter from Susan Stitham Chair, Alaska State Board of
Education & Early Developnent, which responds to Senator
Wl ken's charge that the board's action was outside the
statutes; he said Ms. Stitham was outside the |aw because the
|l aw sinply doesn't allow the argunent used to not inplenent
corrective action for these two school districts. Senat or
Wlken reiterated that this is not nmeant to be punitive but
rather corrective.

CHAI R THERRI AULT renarked that it wll take sone tine to sit
down and read the report. He requested that the nenbers take
the tine to do so because education funding is the |argest part
of the state operating budget.

Number 1035

SENATOR W LKEN turned to the capital budget and pointed out that
there is a $350,000 for the Al aska School Operating Cost Study.
Senator W/ ken expressed his distress with the House's noving
[the deadline for the study] to March 2002. He felt that was a
terrible decision that was driven by politics rather than

rati onal thought. He said, "That effort is going to be
nonunental , at best. It's never been done before. And it
affects every kid in our school [districts]; it affects every
parent of every kid." Therefore, the last thing that anyone

wants is to have a weak study that becomes a "political
footbal I during canpaign tine. He pointed out that this study
has to produce a product mnmuch like the exit exam and that is it

has to be valid and reliable for what it neasures. Absent a
credible study, people wll <continue to fall back on the
district cost factors as a reason why noney isn't put into
educat i on. Senator W/l ken said, "You have to continue to beat
down these doors of excuses why people don't want to support K-
12 education; this is one of them" If this study is done
correctly, he said, that argument wll be laid to rest.

However, Senator WIlken maintained that March 2002 is too soon.
He said it rests with Chair Therriault to see that it is done
correctly; however, he offered his help.

CHAIR THERRI AULT noted his wunderstanding of Senator WIken's
concern.

DAVID TEAL, Legislative Fiscal Analyst, Legislative Finance
Division, Alaska State Legislature, said he agreed with Senator
W ken's opinion. M. Teal infornmed the conmttee that he had
worked with the MDowell Goup during the witing of the

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 6- May 7, 2001



previ ous study, which was incorporated into SB 36; therefore, he

is famliar with the cost factors. He indicated that an early
date for the study will provide an excuse for why it wasn't done
correctly, and said the study will not be done correctly with a

March 2002 deadl i ne.

MR. TEAL said perhaps the study could be done correctly if the
request for proposals (RFP) "went out the door,"” if there were
no concerns or protests, and if the bid was awarded quickly.
Therefore, it is possible to conplete the study by March [2002].
However, he didn't foresee the procurenent process getting noney

on the street that quickly. Furthernore, it is going to be
difficult to set up because school isn't in session during the
sunmmer . It will be difficult to really get started on this

study until Septenber or October, and then the information from
comunities across Al aska must be gathered, which takes tine.
Wth the March [2002] deadline, the desired study will not be
pr oduced.

SENATOR WLKEN recalled that the study for SB 36 found,
surprisingly, that 53 schools didn't have a common chart of
accounts. Therefore, the departnent has been working on having
a common chart of accounts throughout the school districts. He
asked to how that process is progressing.

MR. TEAL answered, "Firsthand, | don't know, " but said staff
hired [for that purpose] have been working on it |ong enough
that the system should be vastly inproved. However, he pointed
out that this study says not to look at the chart of accounts
but rather to look at [cost factors in the community]. He said,
"That's the directive you' ve got here. It's not a school cost
factor anynore; it's a cost-of-living study."”

SENATOR WLKEN interjected that it is the cost of education,
which is different fromthe cost of |iving. "This is the issue
we have in front of us,"” he added.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked where the capital budget is on the House
side; after determning that the capital budget was [in third
reading on the House floor], he indicated this could still be
fixed.

REPRESENTATI VE LANCASTER said there had been discussions on that
in the House Finance Committee, which is where the date was
changed per the request of Eddy Jeans, Departnent of Education &
Early Devel opnent.

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -7- May 7, 2001



REPRESENTATIVE HARRIS clarified that he believes M. Jeans

agreed with Senator W I ken' s position. However, he believes
that at the tinme there may have been sone negotiations that
changed M. Jeans' opi nion. Still, Representative Harris said

he felt it could be revisited.
Nunber 1431

CHAI R THERRI AULT enphasi zed the need to be concerned with this
because this is going to rely on his staff. He indicated he
woul d speak with Speaker Porter on this nmatter so that tine and
noney were not wasted [with a poor study] that allows the
af orenenti oned ar gunent.

SENATOR WLKEN infornmed the conmttee that M. Jeans had
testified in both the House and Senate Health, Education &
Social Service Commttees and Finance Conmittees, prior to the
other night, that 2003 is the appropriate date. Senat or W/ ken
sai d:

If this creates a great big rift, then ... the burden
will be ... on us to have the strength next year in
March to say to the people who are winning ..., in the
nunbers, that we're not going to have a report because
it's not valid - because the people that are |osing
are going to be exactly where we were three years ago,
with exactly the sanme argunents and exactly the sane

issue. ... It affects everybody, and that cost
differential ... is very significant in the overal

funding. ... If ... [the House] doesn't want to set
things aside and go through this, ... that's fine, but
we need to know, then, that that rests on our
shoul ders to nake sure that ... we have the strength

next year to say, "No, we don't have it to the point
where to let it out to the public.”

Nunber 1552

SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked whether M. Teal is suggesting a January
2003 or a July 2003 deadli ne. As a former chair of the Joint
Commttee on Legislative Budget & Audit, Senator Phillips said,
"You're not going to be able to nake it."

MR. TEAL remarked that he didn't believe [January or July] would

matter that nuch. He suggested that if the study canme out in
Septenber, for exanple, the legislature would be able to review
it, versus if it canme out in January. Al t hough there is no

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 8- May 7, 2001



reason to delay it for an entire year, he did believe that
anot her six nmonths would be beneficial. Last tine, there wasn't
time to "do the study right,” although "we" did the best we
could with the tine allotted. M. Teal said he believes the
| egi slature wants the best study possible, not just the study
possible within the tinefrane.

CHAIR THERRI AULT referred to Representative WlIlson's bill, HB
203. He pointed out that quite often the budget bills are held
past the end of the session before being transmtted to the
governor for his action. Therefore, "it puts us out quite a
ways before we get it." He related his understanding that the
[comm ttee] cannot begin the RFP process until the appropriation
i s obt ai ned.

MR. TEAL said he isn't sure whether it is law or policy, but it
is firmy enforced that the RFP process isn't started until the
noney i s in hand.

CHAIR THERRI AULT pointed out that there are also tine
requirenents for the requests. At the earliest, he projected
that the process couldn't begin for three or four nonths.

MR. TEAL remarked that [it could be anyone's guess] as to
whether there are challenges and protests. However, even
wi t hout challenges and protests and the noney being available
qui ckly, the necessary information from the school districts
won't be obtained until they return to work in Decenber.

Number 1684

SENATOR PHILLIPS interjected that there is no question that
there will be chall enges.

MR. TEAL commented that it is too nuch nobney to not have a
chal | enge.

SENATOR PHI LLIPS said he believes Senator W/I ken's judgnent call
is correct.

SENATOR W LKEN expressed the need to view this study as a ten-
year project rather than a nere $350, 000 contract.

Number 1737

JO NT BUD COW TTEE - 9- May 7, 2001



M5. DAVIDSON, in response to Senator Phillips, said she
anticipates sone prelimnary reports at the end of June, wth
the next set arriving in md-Septenber.

CHAIR THERRI AULT said that he didn't plan to have nonthly

neetings, which don't seem necessary. However, he didn't want
audits to sit. He announced that he would work wth the
menber s’ schedul es. The neetings wll likely occur in

Anchorage, he noted, although there may be neetings held in
Fai rbanks when it is cost-effective to do so.

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the Joint

Comm ttee on Legislative Budget and Audit neeting was adjourned
at 9:40 a.m

JO NT BUD COW TTEE -10- May 7, 2001



